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Chartered Accountants

C-109, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024, India
Phones : +91-11-24645895/96 E-mail : audit@dpncindia.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Pharmax Corporation Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Pharmax Corporation Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, th}t“\'\'(l"j“rﬁ Qperating
s Q-f)—*-\%:e';'\ﬁ

(&

(¢ o e
(_¢ Noita )7 )
[&\_t.\l / &

e

Head Office: 57-H, Connaught Circus, New Delhi - 110 001, India Phones : +91-11-23322359/1418 %
Branch Office: D-295, Defence Colony, New Delhi - 110 024, India Phones : +91-11-24645891/92/93 E-ma_i_ltz:ﬁdpnc@dpncindia.com

& Lo
vdpncindia.com



effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that gives a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has an adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.




Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in the
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The statutory audit was conducted via making arrangements to provide requisite documents/ information
through an electronic medium. The Company has made available the following information/ records/
documents/ explanations to us through e-mail and remote secure network of the Company: -

a) Scanned copies of necessary records/documents deeds, certificates and the related records made
available electronically through e-mail or remote secure network of the Company; and

b) By way of enquiries through video conferencing, dialogues and discussions over the phone, e-mails and
similar communication channels.

It has also been represented by the management that the data and information provided electronically for
the purpose of our audit are correct, complete, reliable and are directly generated from the accounting
system of the Company, extracted from the records and files, without any further manual modifications so
as to maintain its integrity, authenticity, readability and completeness. In addition, based on our review of
the various internal audit reports/inspection reports/other reports (as applicable), nothing has come to
our knowledge that makes us believe that such an audit procedure would not be adequate.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “ Annexure A”
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of

section 197 of the Act.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:



(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of the account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “ Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 23 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the notes to the accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.




v. There is no dividend declared or paid during the year by the company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its Books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our andit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of
audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial
year ended March 31, 2024.

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co.
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph - 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements” of our Report of even date.)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given by the
management and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of the audit
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that: -

W

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(@) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and the situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The company does not have intangible assets. Hence paragraph 3(i)(a)(B) does not apply to the
company.

(b) The management has physically verified the property, plant and equipment at reasonable
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) The company does not have any immovable property under the Property, Plant and
Equipment. Hence paragraph 3(i)(c) does not apply to the company.

(d) The company is not revaluing its property, plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets)
or intangible assets during the year, hence paragraph 3(i)(d) is not applicable to the company.

(e) Based on the management representation, there is no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder, hence the paragraph 3 (1) (e) is not
applicable on the company.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, during the year the company
has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Hence paragraph 3(iii) is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Act have been complied with.

The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposited; hence
paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

In our opinion, paragraph 3(vi) of the order is not applicable.

(a) On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
Provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value-added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally been regularly
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(viii)

()

deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable
to it.

In our opinion, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax,
value-added tax, duty of customs, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records, there are no transactions that
are there which is not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961), hence
clause 3 (viii) is not applicable to the company.

(a) On the basis of our examination of the books of accounts and records and in our opinion, there
is no default in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

(b)According to the information and explanations are given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

(d) The Company has not taken any short-term loan during the year and hence, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(d) of the order is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanations are given to us and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year,
the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is
not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(b) Based on the examination of the records of the Company and in our opinion, no report under
sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi company. Hence, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on our examination of the records of the Company and in our opinion, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details
of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Act.

(b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the company.

(a) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

(b) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not conducted any
non-Banking financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration from
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Core Investment
company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India and accordingly
there is no requirement to fulfill the criteria of a CIC.

(d) Based on our examination of the records of the Company, there is no CIC as part of the group
and therefore Clause 3 (xvi) (d) is not applicable to the company

Based on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not incurred cash
losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, this clause
is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations are given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one



year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and
when they fall due.

(xx)  Based on our examination of the records of the Coinpany, section 135 of the Act is not applicable
to the company hence, paragraph 3(xx) of the order is not applicable.

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PHARMAX CORPORATION LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

We have audited the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of Pharmax Corporation
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Dewan P. N. Chopra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 0004%’%!\1011%;;‘
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31,2024
CIN- U24232PB1989PLC009741

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Note As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 0.70 1.13
Investment Property 4 14,358.33 8,152.28
Deferred tax asséts (net) : 21 - 13.82
Other non current assets 5 204.56 768.21
14,563.59 8,935.44
Current assets
Financial assets 6
(i) Trade receivables 717 23.70
(ii) Other financial assets 295.43 134.44
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 145.02 301.21
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 459.57 797.17
Other current assets 7 451.41 718.70
Current tax assets 8 96.46 101.82
1,455.06 2,077.03
TOTAL ASSETS 16,018.65 11,012.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 473.89 473.89
Other equity 9 1,255.67 1,138.51
Total equity 1,729.56 1,612.40
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 10 .
(i) Borrowings ) 6,806.50 4,336.39
(if) Other non-current financial liabilities 1,034.06 372.97
Long term provisions 11 2030 13.86
Deferred tax Liabilities 21 220.17 -
8,081.03 4,723.22
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 12
(i) Borrowings 4,455.18 3,900.87
(ii) Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 16.48 9.26
(iii) Other financial liabilities 1,658.17 734.10
Short term provisions 13 22.46 14.74
Other current liabilities 14 55.77 17.88
6,208.06 4,676.85
TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,289.09 9,400.07
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,018.65 11,012.47
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-46
The accompanymg notes are 1ntegra] part of the financial statements For and on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors of
¥harmax Corporation Limitea
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Chartered Accountants
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2024
CIN- U24232PB1989PLC009741

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particuars ’ Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
INCOME
Revenue from operations 15 1,041.21 710.52
Other income 16 87.25 43.82
Total income 1,128.46 754.34
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense 17 0.63 -
Finance costs 18 364.90 365.66
Depreciation and amortization expense 19 189.37 73.53
Other expenses 20 191.37 96.24
Total expenses 746.27 53543
Profit/(Loss) before tax 382.19 21891
Tax expenses
- Current tax R 38.25
Less: MAT credit entitlement - (38.25)
- Deferred tax 21 239.61 (78.71)
-Income Tax paid for earlier years 18.65 -
Total tax expense 258.26 (78.71)
Profit/(Loss) after tax 123.93 297.62
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent year:
Income tax effect - -
Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -
Total c_omprehénsive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 123.93 297.62
Earnings per equity share (Nominal Value of share Rs.1/-) (refer note 20)
Basic (Rs.) 0.16 0.58
Diluted (Rs.) 0.19 0.39
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-46
The accompanying notes mmlgg{p{ft of the financial statements
%.
Lo For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pharmax Corporation Limited o
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(Chairman) \ O\
Membership No. 505371 (DIN 08490762) . A
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Chartered Accountants
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN- U24232PB1989PLC009741

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 382.19 218.91
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 189.37 73.53
Deferred Guarantee Fee ' (4.13) (4.12)
Profit on sale of current investment - (11.16)
Amortisation of Deferred Income (40.77) (28.549)
Revenue from Rentals(Equilisation as per Ind-AS) 161.01 (70.66)
Finance costs 364.90 365.66
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,052.57 543.63
Waorking capital adjustments:
Movements in provisions, gratuity and leave encashment 14.16 28.60
Increase / (Decrease) in other current finanacial liabilities 964.84 582.67
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 16.53 (11.95)
Increase / (Decrease) in other non current finanacial liabilities 289.04 48.44
(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 267.29 (478.97)
(Increase) / Decrease in other current financial assets (322.00) 114.15
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 45,10 12.33
Cash generated from operations 2,327.52 838.89
Income tax paid - 2221
Net cash flows vsed in operating activities 2,327.52 861,10
Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds /(Purchases ) property, plant and equipment - (73.37)
Investments in FDR's 337.60 (734.73)
Investments in Mutual Funds - 1,285.44
Purchase of 1 property, (including 1 ible assets, CWIP and capital advances) (5,831.78) (3,945.27)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (5,494.18) (3,467.93)
Cash flow from financing activities
Reduction in share capital & Share premium - (1,238.65)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,450.00 4,072.85
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 560.47 -
Net cash flows from financing activities . 3,010.47 2,834.20
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (156.19) 221737
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 301.21 73.84
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 145.02 301.21
Components of cash and cash equivalents :-
(Rs. in Lacs)
Asat As at

March 31, 2024

March 31,2023

Balances with banks:
On currént accounts
Cash on hand

144.19 300.49
0.83 0.72
145.02 301.21

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-46
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN- U24232PB1989PLC009741

a) Equity share capital
Particulars Nos. (Rs. in Lacs)
As at April 1, 2022 5,53,25,752 553.26
Add: Equity share issued during the year - -
Less: Reduction in share capital (Refer Note 9(i)(h)) (82,03,005) (82.03)
As at March 31, 2023 4,71,22,747 471.23
Add: Equity share issued during the year ) - -
As at March 31,2024 4,71,22,747 471.23
b) Other equity (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total equity
Security Premium | Retained Equity Equity Equity Component
earnings Comp t on p t of on account of

account of 10% Cumulative |Interest Free Loan

Fi ial Compulsory by the Holding

Guarantee Convertible Company

provided by the |Preference Shares
Holding Company

As at April 1, 2022 2,215.20 (604.31) 8.26 44.59 257.20 1,920.94
Add: Premium on 10% Cumulative Compulsory Covertible
Preference Shares - - - - . -
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 297.62 - - - 297.62
Less: Premium on Share Capital Reduction
(Refer Note 9(i)(h)) (1,156.62) (1,156.62)
Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee - 27.15 27.15
Equity component on account of Loan by the
Holding Company - b 49.42
Distribution of Profit on account of Financial Guarantee
provided to Holding Company - - -
Equity component of 10% Compound Financial Instruments - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 1,058.58 (306.69) 35.41 44.59 306.62 1,138.51
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 123.93 - - - 123.93
Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee - - 8.12 - - 8.12
Equity Component reversed on account of Financial
Guarantee revoked - - (14.89) - - (14.89)
Equity component on account of Loan by the Holding
Compan; - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 1,058.58 (182.76) 28.64 44.59 306.62 1,155.67
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-46
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2.2

Corporate Information

The financial statements comprise financial of Pharmax Ci ion Limited (the for the period ended March 31, 2024. Pharmax Corporation Limited (“Pharmax”) is a public limited
company registered under Companies Act, 2013. The company is engaged in the business of deals in leasing of Estates.

The financial were authorised for issue in d. with a ion of the directors on 218t May 2024.

Significant accounting policles

Basis of preparation

‘The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian A ing Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time). For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2018 the Company prepared its financial d: i dards notified under the section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with h 7 of the C ies (A ) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). The financial mtemcnls for the year anded March 31, 2019 are the first the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

‘The financial statements have been prepared on & historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value
(i) Certein financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
Financial Statement are presented in INR and all values are rounded to nearest Lacs (INR 00,000) except when otherwise stated

Summary of significant accounting policies
Current versus nen-current classification

‘The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset js treated as current when it is:
(i) Expected to be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-ourrent.

A liability is current when:

(@) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii) It is heid primarily for the purpose of trading

(iii) It is due to settled within twelve months after the repomng period, or

(i) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

‘The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the result in its settl by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-ourrent assets and Liabilities.

‘The operating cycle is the time between the isition of assets for p ing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified twelve months as its operating oycle.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, loss and impai losses, if any, The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes,

duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to i and i ion of the d assets and are further adjusted by the amount of GST credit availed wherover

Appheable ‘When s:gmﬁcunt parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company d iates them based on their ive useful lives. Likewise, when a major
is perfc d, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equip asa ifthe ition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and mai costs are in

profit or loss as incurred,

An ilem of propesty, plant and equi and any sighi part initially ized is ds 3 upmdlsposulorwhmnoﬁnmeeconomncbmeﬁtsamm(peﬂedﬁ’omnsuseordnspom Anygmnoxloss

arising on d ition of the asset (calculated as the diffe ‘between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is inoluded in the income ‘when the asset is

The company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset and has useful life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equj ‘under installation / under develop: 83 ot the balance sheet date.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets esti d by and in the manner ibed in Schedule II of
the Companies Act 2013.The useful life is as follows:
Assets Useful lives estimated by the management (years)
Office equipment 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
lnvestment property
ition and uunal
I are p held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. I d initially at their cost of acquisition including transaction costs.
The cost ises purchase price, b g cost, if capitalizati cmena are met and directly attrlbutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade

discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

Property held under lease is class:ﬂed as investment property when it is held to eam rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for

use in production or Sub costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised asa separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other répair and mai costs are d in of profit and loss as incurred. The cost includes the
cost of replacing parts and t ng costs for long-t ion projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced

atintervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

D iation on i ies is provided on the line method, over the useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Asset Category* Estimated
Buildings 60
Plant & Machinery 15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Computers 6
Other equipments 6-10

Estimated useful life of Leasehold land is over the period of lease.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an
annual evalvation performed by the company applying a valuation model acceptable,

De—recognition

are d i euher when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The dlﬂermce beiween the net disposal proceeds nnd the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period of de-recognition.




d.

Tmpairment of non financlal assets

‘The Company assesses at each xeponmg date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annua) impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's, ble-amount. An asset’s ble amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impairod and is written down to its recoverable amount. In asscssing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are disoounted to their present value using & pre-
tax discount rate that reflects. ourrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net sel]mg price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if
available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment caloulation on detailed budgets and foreoast caloulations which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to whioh the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering & period of five years. For the remaining economic life of the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU), a long term growth rate is calculated
and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impeirment losses including impai on i ies, are ized in the of profit and foss.

After impairment, depreciation is provide on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining economic life.

An assessments is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previ ized impai losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. I such indication cxists, the
Company estimates the asset’s or cash ing unit’s emount. A previ ized i loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount sinoe the last impairment loss was Ncogmzed The xeversal i3 limited so \hnl the canying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been ined, net of depreciation, had no i loss been ized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. .

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financia} liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets
‘The Company classified its financial assets in the following measurement categories :-
- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive i income or through profit & loss)

- Those measured at amortized cost

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value |hmugh profit or loss, ion costs that are attrib tothe isition of the financial
asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by or ion in the market place (regular way trades) are reeo;uzed on the trade date,

i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
(i) Debt instruments at amortized cost

(ii) Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Debt instruments at amortized cost

A'debti ' is d at the ized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(i) Business modet test : The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to
released its fair value change), and

(ii) Cash flow characteristics test : Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such finencial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, EIR is the rate that exactly discount the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate to the gross carrying amount, of financial assets. When caloulating the effective interest rate the company estimate the expeoted
cash flow by considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the
profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments a¢t FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which does nol meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. A gain or loss an a Debt instrument
that is subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not a part of a hedging relationship is din of profit or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains or losses in

the period in which it arises, Interest income from these Debt instruments is included in other income.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of 3 Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.¢., removed from the Company's statement of financial position)
when:
-the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
~the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under & "pass through®
arrangement and either;
(@) the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or
(b) the Compeny has retained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractuel obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

‘Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownezsl-up of the financial assets, In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets, the financial asset is not derecognized. -

‘Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the ﬁnnnclal asset is derecognized if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is inued to be recognized to the extent of continui 2\ in the financial asset,

Inventories

Inventories comprise completed units for sale and property under construction (Work in progress):

(A) Completed Unsold inventory is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by including cost of land, materials, services and related overheads.

(B) Work in progress is valued at cost. Cost comprises value of land (including development rights), materials, services and other overheads related to projects under construction.

Tmpairment of financial assets
In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for and ition of i loss on the following financial asset and credit risk exposure

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

- Financial assets measured at fair value through other cmnprehensxve income (FVTOCI);

The Coxnpany fo!lows “simplified approach” for ition of i loss on trade recei Under the simplified approach, the Company does not tmck changes in cxed:t risk. Rather, it
loss all based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition, the Company uses a provision matrix to d i loss all on the

porlfoho of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expecied life of trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates, At every reporting

date, the historica) observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward looking estimates are analyzed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has

not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for mpmrmmt loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, h(enme ECL is used. If, in subsequent period, credit quality of the

instrument lmmves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to i loss all based on 12- months ECL.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to d ine impail loss on portfolio of trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward- looking esti At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates arc updated
and changes in the forward- looking estimates are analysed.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Compeny determines classification of finencial assets and liabilities on initial ition. After initial ition, no recl: ion is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial

habxlmes For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
‘The Company's senior ines changg in the business model as a result of extemal or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes arc evident

to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is signi toits ions. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it

applm the reclassi ivel ﬁom the ification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting p:nod following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any

ized gains, losses (i i gains or losses) or interest.

P




{iD Financlal Yiabilities

TInitlal recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial lisbilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company

financial liabilities include loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payable, trade deposits, retention money and other payables.

‘The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Trade Payables
‘These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of

recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period, They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using EIR method.

Financial liabilitles at fair vatue through profit or loss

Finanial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
lisbilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on Liabilities held for trading arc recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
Financia! liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair valuc gains/ losses attributsble to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans lnd borrowings
are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial ition, interest-bearing loans and b ings are sub: i) at ised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR ization process, ised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount

or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs beause the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt i Financial contracts are i mmal}y asa lmblhty at fmr value, adjustzd for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the the liability is d at the higher of the amount of loss al ined as per i of IND AS'109 and the amount recognised Jess cumulative
amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medication is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of & new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to

settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probnble that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably d. The following specific ition criteria

(i) Revenue is recognised over time if either of the following conditions is met:

a. Buyers take all the benefits of the property as real estate developers construct the property.

b. Buyers obtain physical possession of the property

c. The property unit to be delivered is specified in the contract and renl cstate entity does not have an alternative use of the unit; the buyer does not have the discretion to terminate the contract

In case none of these conditions is met, revenue would be recognised at a point in time when the control of the property is passed on to the customer.

(i) Revenue from shared services
Revenue from shared services is recognized over the period of contract, as and when services are rendered.

(i) from project / d
Revenue from project 1| / d is ized as per the terms of the agreement on the basis of services rendered.

(i) Gain on sale of investments
On disposal of an investment, the difference between the carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is recognised to the profit and loss statement.

(i) Interest and direct expenditure attributable to specific projects are capitalized in the cost of project, other interest and indirect costs are treated as ‘Period Cost’ and charged to Profit &

Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expeoted to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in acoordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the income computation

and disclosure standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tex rates and tax laws that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax jtems are reoogmmd in correlation to the
\mdnlymg transaction en.her in OCT or dmecﬂy in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which i tax ions are subject to
and provisions where ap iate, if any.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the

reporting date.

Deferred tax Labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; .

‘- In respect of taxable temporary differences iated with i in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will ot reverse in the foresecable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized

except:
<When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

-In respect of deductible temporary differences iated with i in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary

differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unsecognized deferred tax assets are d at each reporting date and are ized to the extent that it has become probable that future

taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside the statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
din fation to the underlyn ion either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that

The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the speclﬁed period, i.e., the period for
which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in dance with the Guidance Note on A for Credit Available in respect of
Mini Alternative Tax under the h tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the
“MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

‘.j\} L}‘Oﬁ[-
v L




h

-

-

-

Bormwlnz costs
ng oosts directly attri to the isiti i ion of an asset that takes a il period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of

the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the penod in whioh they ocour. Borrowing costs consist of interest end other costs that an entity incurs in conneotion with the borrowing of funds,
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases
The Company applies a single ition and pproach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, The Compatty recognises lease liabilities to

make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Company as & lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lense that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date at fair value of the leased pmpeny or, if lower, at the present value of the mini; lease Lease p are
apportioned between finanoe charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis.over the lease term unless the payment are structured to increase in line \;a‘th expected general
inflation to compensate for the losses in expected inflationary cost inorease.

Company 8s a lessor

Leascs in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in iating and ing an ing lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed.

Provision and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of pust event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economio benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed st each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilitles
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the or of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the

Company o7 a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probabie that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liabilily also arises in extremely rare cases,
‘where there is a liability that cannot be recognized beuuse it cannot be measured reliably, the Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the
probability of cutflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, i liabilities, i assets and i are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Provident fund
The Company contributed specified monthly payments determined at a fixed percentage of basic salaries of the employeu towards employes provident fund to government administered fund . The benefit vests

upon commencergent of the employment.

Gratulty
Giratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year.
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit (iabiliti ‘The Company ized the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee benefit

expenses in statermnent of profit and loss

(i) Service cost comprising current service cost, past service cost, gain & loss on curtailments and non routine settlements.

(i) Net interest expenses or income

Rermeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained eamings through OCI in the period in
which they ocour. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit . The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount

that it it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

‘The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long term anpluyee ‘benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end .Actuarial gains/l are diately taken to the of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Company
presents the leave a3 a cuent Jiability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the scitlement for a period 12 months, the same is presented as non-current libility. .

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes

in value.

Eaming per share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares ding, without a ding change in

For the purpose of calculating diluted carnings per share, the net profit or logs for the year and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects of all
potential equity shares.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.’
The fair value of an assel or & liability is measured using the assumptions. that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, ing that market partici act in their ic best

interest.
A fair value measurement of a ncn-ﬁnnncia] asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

Al] assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

to the fair value as a whole:
(i) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(ii) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signil to the fair value is directly or indirectly observable
(iii) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signi to the fair value is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are ized in the financial on & recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorization (based on the Jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

This note summarises accouting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures sre given in the relevant notes.
- Dsclotmres for vahation methords, significant estimates and assumptions
-0 of fair value hierarchy
- Investment in unquoted equity shares
- Financial instruments ( including those carried at amortised cost)

Deferred Brokerage Expenses
The Company incurs brokerage expenses when it leases out its properties and charges such !as@‘era_ue expenses over the lock-in-period of the leases.
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ine tud and
The preparation of the Company's financial requires to make jud; estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assots and liabilities, and
ing disel and the discl of conti liabilities. L inty about these ions and estimates could result in outoomes that require 8 material adjustment to the carrying amount

the
of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concemning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and lisbilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statement: were prepared. Existing
i and ions about future however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur.

{a) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the intespretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the

long term nature and ity of existing 1 differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate fisture

adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on ble estimates. The amount of such provisions is based an various factors, such as experience of

previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide varicty of issuss depending on the
itions prevailing in the respective domicile of the i

(b) Fair velue measurement of financial instrument
‘When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques

including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is niot feasible, degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the Teported fair value of financial instruments.

() Impairment of non-Financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using & pre-tax disoount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

3. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Plant and equipment Computers and data Grand Total
processing units

At cost

As at April 1, 2022 6.66 1.34 8.00
Additions - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2023 6.66 1.34 8.00
Additions 0.00 - 0.00
Disposals/Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2024 6.66 1.34 8.00
Depreciation

As at April 1, 2022 6.59 0.12 6.71
Charge for the year - 0.16 0.16
Disposals / Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2023 6.59 0.28 6.87
Charge for the year - 043 0.43
Disposals / Adjustments - - -
As at March 31, 2024 6.59 0.71 7.30
Net carrying amount -
As at March 31, 2024 0.07 0.63 0.70
As at March 31, 2023 0.07 1.06 1.13
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Pharmax Corporation Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

4.

Investment Property
(R in Lacs)

Particulars Land (freehold) Investment Property Land (leasehold) Total Investment Property

under development
At cost
As at April 1, 2022 579.15 2,855,582 91.65 3,526.32 1,453.36
Additions . - - 3,355.66
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - .
As at March 31, 2023 579.15 2,855.52 91.65 3,526.32 4.509.02
Additions - 11,204.03 - 11,204.03 6,395.01
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - (11,204.03)
As at March 31, 2024 579.18 14,059.55 91.65 14,730.35 -
Amortization
As at April 1, 2022 - 109.69 - 109.69 -
Additions - 73.37 7337 -
Disposals - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 - 183.06 - 183.06 -
Additions - 188.94 - 188.94 -
Disposals - - - L. .
As at March 31, ;024 = 372,02 - 372.02 -
Net carrying amount
As at March 31,2024 579.15 13,687.53 91.65 14,358.33 -
As at March 31,2023 579.15 2,672.46 91.65 3,343.26 4,809.02
For details of assets pledged/mortgage refer note 10.
(i) Contractual Obligations
Refer Note 23 for discl of 1} for the acquisition of Investment Properties.
(i) Amount recognised in profit and loss for Investment Properties (Rs. In Lakhs)

For the year ended March For the year ended March

31,2024 31, 2023
Rental Income 1,041.21 739.06
Less: Direct operating expenses g 2 rental income 3.97 2.78
Profit from leasing of Investment Properties 1,037.24 736.28
Less: Depreciation Expense 188.94 7337
Profit / (Loss) from leasing of Investment Properties after depreciati 848.30 662.90

(iii) Fair Value hierarchy and valuation technique

P

The fair value of i property has been d
the location and category of the property being valued. The fair value has been arrived using d

d by the intemally, having appropri gnised p
d cash flow p

cash flows considering growth in rental of 15% on every 3 years, vacancy rate of 3% and discount rate of 13.00%.

Reconciliation of fair Value:

Closing Balance as at 31st March 2022*
Increase in Fair Value

Decline in Fair Value

Closing Balance as at 31st March 2023*
Increase in Fair Value

Decline in Fair Value

Closing Balance as at 31st March 2024*

* Other than Investment property under Development

! qualification and recent experience in
bagsed on reliable estimates of future

(Rs. In Lakhs)
13,150,94
4,125.01

17,275.98
29,971.24

47,247.19

As at 31st March, 2020, the fair values of the properties are 9135.00 Lakhs (land value only). The fair value of investment property has been determined by external,
independent property valuer, having appropriate recognised pmfmsnonal quahﬁcauon and recent experience in the location and category of the property bemg value A
model in d with that ded by i dards committee had been applied. The obtains i
for its investment property annually and fair value measurement has been categorised as Level 3. Fair Values of land are arrived using sales comparable method.
property under devel are subject to fair valuation once ready for commercial rental activities.

Valuation models applied for valuation:
Discounted cash flow method - net present value is determined based on projected cash flows discounted at an appropriate rate

(iv) Leasing Arrangements

Certain investment properties are leased to tenants under long term operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

‘The company has leased out office p under non llable operating leases. The d future lease related receivables in respect of these leases
{Rs, In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Not later than 1 year 1,967.10 786.00

later than 1 year but not later than 3 years 2,733.65 1,681.00

more than 3 years 1,319.00 4,317.00

Total . 6,019.75 6,784.00

(v) For details of Assets charged, refer note 10 To financial statements
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Pharmax Corporation Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
5. Other non current assets
Capital Advances 204.56 768.21
204.56 768..21_
6. Current financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
Unsecured :-
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured 7.17 23.70
Trade Receivabl idered good - U d . .
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk . .
Trade Receivables - credit impaired . - -
7.17 23.70
Ageing of trade receivable as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not due <1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 7.04 0.13 - - 717
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - = = -
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impared - - - = - -
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - = -
| Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - = =
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impared - - - - = -
Ageing of trade receivable as on March 31, 2023
iculars Outstanding for followin; iods from due date of payment
— Not due <1 1enr_x—‘%—'ip_ years | More than 3 years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 23.70 - - - 23.70
Undisputed Trade ivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - .
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impared ) - - - . -
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - 5 - .
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - 5 -
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impared - - 5 N =
(i) Other financial assets
Rent receivable (Equalisation) 295.43 134.43
29543 13444
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts 144.19 30049
Cash on hand 0.83 0.72
150 0121
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
Deposits with remaining maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months 45957 79717
45957 79717
7. Other current assets (unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advances 10 suppliers, employees etc 452 -
Prepaid expenses 0.14 25.14
Balance with statutory authorities 22234 649.92
Security Deposit 39.60 9.00
Deferred Guarantee Fee 1545 34.64
Deferred brokerage expenses 169.36 -
asia_ 7870,
8. Current tax assets
Advance income tax (net of provisions) 96.46 101,82
%64e_ 10182
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

9. Share capital and other equity

[0] Equity share capital

(Rs in Lacs)
Particuars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Authorized
60,000,000 (March 31, 2023: 60,000,000) equity shares of Re. 1/- each 600.00 600.00
10% 470,000 (March 31, 2023: 470,000) C ive Compulsory Convertible Prefs Shares of Rs, 100/- each 470.00 470.00
9% 1,500,000 (March 31, 2023: 1,500,000) Cumulative Compulsory R ble Prefe share of Rs. 100/- each 1,500.00 1,500.00

2.570.00 2,570.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

47,122,747 (March 31, 2023: 55,325,752) equity shares of Re. 1/- each fully paid up 47123 471.23
Forfeited shares 2.66 2.66
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 471.8_9= - 4‘Q£9_’
3,00,000 10% (March 31, 2023: 3,00,000) Cumnlative Compulsory Convertible Prefs Shares of Rs. 100/ each 30000 300.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 300.00 300.00

b) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Equity shares i No. of shares (Rs. In lacs) No. of shares (Rs. Inlacs)
At the beginning of the year 4,71,22,747 471.23 5,53,25,752 553.26
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -
Less: Reduction in share capital (Refer Note h) - - (82,03,005) (82.03)
Outstanding at the end of the year 47122747 471.23 4.71.22.747 47123

¢) Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 1/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per shz.re The has not declared any dividend. In the event of

liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all The distribution will be in prop to the
nurnber of equity shares held by the shareholders.
d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Max Estates Limited 4,71,22,747 100% 4,71,22,747 100.00%
€) Details of shares held by holding compﬂ;
Name of the Shareholder March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Max Estates Limited 4,71,22,747 100% 4,71,22,747 100.00%

) Aggregate number of Shares issued for consideration other than cash during the year of five years immediately preceding the reporting date - NIL

g) Shareholding of Promoters

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares| % Change during the year
Max Estates Limited 4,71,22,747 100.00% Nil

Max Estates Limited 4.71,22.747 100.00% 14.83%

h) Capital Reduction in Share Capital
In terms of the provisions of Section 66 of the Comparues Act, 2013, the Shareholders of the Company in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on March 18, 2022, app d the proposed Capital Reds
0f 82,03,005 Equity Shares having face value of INR 1 each fully paid-up, aggregating to INR 82,03,005 held by the non-promoters/ public category shareholders after payment of the consideration amounting to
INR 1 towards Face Value and INR 14.10 towards premium, aggregating to INR 12,38,65,375.50 per equity share, determined on the basis of the Report on valuation of equity shares issued by BDO Valuation
Advisory LLP, i d Valuer having Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/02/2019/103,

Upon receipt of requisite approval/confirmation by the NCLT, the total Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company shall be reduced from INR 5,53,25,752 divided into 5,53,25,752
Equity Shares having face value of INR 1 each fully paid-up, to INR 4,71,22,747 divided into 4,71,22,747 Equity Shares having face value of INR 1 each fully paid-up.

The Company filed an application with NCLT on March 28, 2022 for reduction of capital under Section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013, NCLT vide order dated October 21, 2022 approved the share capital
reduction. The necessary effect of capital reduction has been ded in the finanical for the year ended March 31, 2023.
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(i)  Other equity

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Securities Premium (refer note a below) 1,058.58 1,058.58
Retained earnings (refer note b below) (182.76) (306.69)
Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee provided by the Holding Company 28.64 3541
(refer note ¢ below)
Equity Component of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 44.59 44.59
(refer note d below) '
Equity Component on account of Interest Free Loan by the Holding Company 306.62 306.62
(refer note e below)
1,255.67 1,138.51
Notes:
a) Securities premium account
At the beginning of the year 1,058.58 2,215.20
Less: Premium on share capital reduction (Refer Note 9(i)(h)) - (1,156.62)
' 1,058.58 1,058.58
b) Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year (306.69) (604.31)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 123.93 297.62
At the end of the year (182.76) (306.69)
¢) Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee provided by the Holding Company
At the beginning of the year 35.41 8.26
Add: additions during the year 8.12 27.15
Less: deletion during the year (14.89) -
At the end of the year 28.64 35.41
d) Equity Component of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
At the beginning of the year 44.59 44.59
Add: additions during the year - -
At the end of the year 44.59 44.59
¢) Equity Component on account of Interest Free Loan by the Holding Company
At the beginning of the year 306.62 257.20
Add: additions during the year - 49.42
At the end of the year 306.62 306.62

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Retained earnings - Retained earnings are profits of the company earned till date less transferred to general reserve.

Equity Component on account of Financial Guarantee provided by the Holding Company - Company has received financial guarantee from the holding
company for taking the loan from Bank on which based on Ind AS 109, company has recognised equity component.
Equity Component of Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - Preference shares are to be converted on or before the end of 20 years from the

date of issue of the said preference share in terms of Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Equity Component on account of Interest Free Loan by the Holding Company - Company has received interest free long term loan from the holding company

on which based on Ind AS 109, company has recognised equity component.

Security Premium - Securities Premium Reserve is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised as per the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024

10. (i) Borrowings

(Rs. in Lacs}
Particulars As at " Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Non-current borrowings :-
Term loans (secured)
From banks (Refer Note A) 6,462.24 4,016.20
Unsecured
Liability Comp t of Compound Fi ial Instruments 34426 320,19
(10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference share) (Refer Note B)
6,806.50 4,336.39
Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings - -
6,806.50 4336.39
Aggregate Secured loans 6,462.24 4,016.20
Aggregate Unsecured loans 344.26 320.19

Note A IDFC First Bank Limited - Term Loan (Secured)
The Company has taken secured term loan facility for 6500 Lakhs loan from IDFC First Bank Limited. Out of this facility the company has drawn 4940 lakhs till March 31, 2024.

i) Primary and collateral security:
8) Exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage on the land and building situated at Khasra Nos. 335/2, Khasra Nos. 335/18 and Khasra Nos. 337 and 1511/339 at village
bahapur, New Delhi (Project) both present and future.
b) Exclusive charge on the current assets and receivables of the project (including insurance claim) both present and future.
¢c) Exclusive charge on the movable assets of the Project, both present and future. '
d) Pledge of 30% shares of Pharmax Corporation Limited held by Max Estate Limited
e) Corporate guarantee of Max Estate Ltd.
ii) Interest Rate - Spread plus IDFC First Bank MCLR
iiiy Tenure - for principal repayment Bullet payment on or before 31.12.2025 and interest to be serviced on a monthly basis.
iv) DSRA - 3 months interest to be created
There is no unhedged foreign curreny transaction outstanding as on Mar 31, 2024

Note B Rights, preferences and restriction attached to shares
Preference Shares
@) - During the Financial year 2019-2020, the Company has issued 115400 number of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares. The said shares are

compulsory convertible on or before the end of 20 years from the date of allotment i.e. 30th March, 2020. The holder has the option to convert the preference shares at any
time on or before the 20 years tenure into 100 equity shares of Re 1/- per preference shares. The preference shareholders have voting rights only in respct of certain matters
as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, The preference shareholders also carry a preferential right vis-a-vis equity shares of the company with
respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding up or repayment of capital.

Further, during the Financial year 2020-2021, the company has issued 184600 number of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference shares. The said shares are
compulsory convertible on or before the end of 20 years from the date of allotment i.e. 3rd December, 2020 and 30th December 2020. The holder has the option to convert
the preference shares at any time on or before the 20 years tenure into 100 equity shares of Re 1/- per prefi shares. The prefc shareholders have voting rights
only in respet of certain matters as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The preference shareholders also carry a preferential right vis-a-vis
equity shares of the company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of a winding up or repayment of capital.

(ii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Max Estate Limited 3,00,000 100% 3,00,000 100%
(iii) Details of Shareholding of Promoters
Promoter Name As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Max Estates Limited 3,00,000 100% 3,00,000 100%
{iv) The 10% Cumulative Compulosry Convertible Preference Shaves ("CCPS") are p d in the Bal Sheet as foll
Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Face Value of CCCPS issued 300.00 300.00
Premium on CCCPS issued 3,600.00 3,600.00
3,900.00 3,900.00
Less: Liability Component of CCPS 255.41 255.41
3,644.59 3,644.59

*The eduity component of 10% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares has been presented in the Statement of Changes in Equity.

(ii) Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities

{Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Security deposits received 887.23 348.60
Deferred Income - Income Received in Advance 130.70 -
Unearned Financial Guarantee Fees 16.13 24.37
= 1,034.06 372.97
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Pharmax Corporation Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11.  Long term provision
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 25) 20.30 13.86
20.30 13.86
12,  Current financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
Loan from related party (Unsecured)* 4,455.18 3,900.87
4,455.18 3,900.87

* The Company has taken term loan from its holding Company i.e. Max Estates Limited (MEL"). The said loan is interest free and is repayable as bullet

payment on or before 30th September , 2024.

(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* (Refer Note 30) - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 16.48 9.26
16.48 9.26
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024
Particulars O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years
MSME - - -
Others 16.48 - -
Disputed Dues - MSME - - -
Disputed Dues - Others - - )
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023
Particulars O ding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years
MSME 0.24 - .
Others 9.02 -
Disputed Dues - MSME - - - -
Disputed Dues - Others - - -
(iii) Other financial liabilities
Capital Creditors 1,597.00 684.03
Deferred Income - Income Received in Advance 57.06 42.17
Uneamed Financial Guarantee Fees 4.11 7.90
1,658.17 734.10
13.  Short term provision
. Provision for employ fit:
Provision for leave encashment 22.09 14.48
Provision for gratuity (refer note 25) 0.37 0.26
22.46 14.74
14,  Other current liabilities
Advance from Customers 0.18 3.46
Statutory dues 55.59 14.42
55.77 17.88
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Pharmax Corporation Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
15 Revenue from operations
(Revenue from contracts with customers)
Lease Rentals 880.20 781.18
Revenue from Rentals(Equilisation as per Ind-AS) 161.01 (70.66)
Total 1,041.21 710.52
16. 'Other income
Gurantee Fee Income - Ind AS 4.13 4.12
Interest received 20.80 11.16
Finance Income Security deposit - Ind AS 40.77 28.54
Other non-operating income 21.55 -
87.25 43.82
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Pharmax Corporation Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
17. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus - -
Staff welfare expenses 0.63 -
0.63 -
18. Finance costs
Interest expense on unwinding of PCL Loan 96.91 312.70
Interest on CCPS 24.06 24.60
Interest on Security Deposit Received - Ind AS Adjustment 39.33 28.36
Interest on Term Loan 202.04 -
Guarantee Fees 2.56 -
364.90 365.66
19. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {refer note 3) 0.43 0.16
Depreciation of investment property (refer note 4) 188.94 73.37
189.37 73.53
20. Other expense
Insurance 0.12 -
Rates and taxes 73.67 88.20
Brokerage 9.28 -
Legal and professional 19.54 2.11
Auditor's Remuneration 3.05 2.25
Directors' sitting fee 1.35 0.90
Facility management 80.39 -
Marketing Expenses 3.97 2.78
191.37 96.24
Payment to auditor
As auditor:
Audit fee (including limited review) 3.05 1.35
Other services (certification fees) - 0.90
3.05 2.25
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

21 Income Tax

The major components of income tax expense for the period/year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are :

Statement of profit and loss :

Profit and loss section

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current income tax :

Current tax - 38.25

MAT credit entitlement - (38.25)

Income tax paid for earlier years 18.65 -

Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 239.61 (78.71)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 258.26 (78.71)

OCI section :

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year/period :

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Income tax charge/(credit) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Income tax charged to OCI

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2024 and March

31, 2023:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Accounting profit before tax 382.19 21891
Accounting profit before income tax 382.19 218.91
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (March30,2023: 26%) 25.17% 26.00%
Computed Tax Expense 96.19 56.92
Adjustment:
MAT Credit Entitlement ! - -
Ind AS Adjustment 75.60 -
Non-taxable income - -
Expenses deferred in current year 42.63 -
Timing difference on investment property 271.81 -
Adjustment of losses (169.86) -56.92
Others (58.10)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 258.26 (78.71)
Total tax expense 258.26 (78.71)
Deferred tax relates to the following:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities
Ind AS Impact Adjustment (75.60) (68.26)
Others (314.43)
Gross deferred tax liabilities (a) - -
Mat Credit (¢) - 82.08
Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss carried forward 169.86
Deferred tax (liabilities) /Assets (net) (220.17) 13.82




Reconciliation of deferred tax Assets / (liability)(net):

(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening balance as of April 1 13.82 (42.68)
Tax expense/( income) during the period recognised in profit or loss (239.61) .
Tax expense/( income) during the period recognised in OCl - -
Deferred tax on Equity Component of Interest Free loan by Holding Company 5.62 18.25
Increase in Mat Credit - 38.25
Closing balance as at March 31 (220.17) 13.82

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Provision for Tax verified in financial statements for the year ending 31.03.2023 are only provisional and it is subject to change at the
time of filing Income Tax Return based on actual addition/deduction as per provisions of Income Tax Act'1961.
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

22

Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts is calculated by dividing the profit/(Loss) for the period attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the

period including ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument, Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weigh
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. Earning per equity share is not annuahsed

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit after tax (Rs. in Lacs) 123.93 297.62
Less: dividends on convertible preference shares & tax thereon
Net profit/(loss) for calculation of basic EPS 123.93 297.62
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year (Nos.) 7,71,22,747 8,17,07,440
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.16 0.36
Dilutive EPS
Profit after tax (Rs. in Lacs) 147.99 32222
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period/year for dilutive earnings per 7,71,22,747 8,17,07,440
share (Nos)* )
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 0.19 0.39

For the purpose of computation of basic eamings per share till March 31, 2023 ordinary shares that would have been issued upon conversion of compulsorily
convertible instruments were not part of the computation which has been included in the current period and the corresponding effect has been given in the compartive
period given in the Financial Statements.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

23

a)

b)

Commitments and contingencies

Commitments (Rs. In Iacs)

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Captial Commitment

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not accounted for - 2,678.48

Less Capital advances - (768.21)

Net commitments - 1,910.27 |

Other Commitment

Corporate Guarantee has been given in favour of Max Estate Limited to the bank for Rupee Term 3,905.00 3,905.00

Loan not exceeding Rs. 4500 Lacs

Exclusive charge over receivables/cash flows/revenues (including booking amounts) and all insurance - -

proceeds, both present and future to the extent of the Company’s share, arising out of or in connection

with the project "Max House" being developed on land located at 1516/338,339,340, Village Bahapur,

near Okhla Railway Station, Delhi admeasuring approx. 2,869 square meters.

Contingent liabilities .

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- Income Tax - -

Total Conting . =
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

24 Related party disclosures
Names of related parties where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have occurred or not
Holding Company Max Estates Limited
Fellow Subsidiary Company Max Square Limited

Max Towers Private Limited

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Directors and Key management personnel

Mrs. Kiran Sharma(Independent Director)
Mr. Kishansingh Ramsinghaney (Director)
Mr Rishi Raj

Mr. Anshul Gaurav

Mr. Archit Goyal (Chief Financial Officer)

|Entities controlled or jointly controlled by person
or entities where person has significantly influence
or entities where person having control is Key
Management personnel

Siva Realty Ventures (P) Ltd.

Max Skill First Limited

Max One Distribution And Services Limited
Antara Senior Living Limited

Max Ateev Limited

Vana Retreats (P) Ltd.

New Delhi House Services Limited

Max Learning Ventures Private Limited

Antara Assisted Care Services Limited

Note : Related party relationships are as identified by the company and relied upon by the Auditors
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

24.01 (a) Details of transactions with related parties
. : For the year ended March| For the year ended
S.No Nature of transaction Particulars 31,2024 March 31, 2023
1 Reimbursement of Expenses (Paid) Max Estates Limited 93.32 37.31
Max Ventures and Industries Limited - 0.02
Total 93.32 37.33
2 |Reimb ¢t of Exp (Charged to CWIP/IP) Max Estates Limited - 16.75
Total - 16,75
3 Revenue from Guarantee Fee Max Estates Limited 4.13 4.12
Total 4.13 4.12
4 Revenue from Lease Rent Max Ateev Limited 0.16 0.20
Antara Senior Living Limited - 132
Max Skill First Limited 0.54 0.66
Max Learning Ventures Pvt Ltd 0.24 0.24
Antara Care Homes Limited 0.48 0.66
Max Asset Services Limited 94.63 89.72
Siva Realty Ventures Private Limited - 66.00
Total 96.05 158.80
5 Guarantee Fee Max Ventures and Industries Limited 0.00 2.65
Max Estates Limited 7.55 2.65
Total 7.55 5.30
6 Performance Guarantee Received Max Asset Services Limited 10.61 =
Total 10.61 0.00
7  |Director’s Sitting Fee |Sanjay Khandelwal 0.68 0.45
Kiran Sharma 0.68 045
Total 136 0.90
8 Legal & Professional Max Ventures & Industries Limited 0.00 76.50
Total 0.00 76.50
9 Loan Given Max Estates Limited 1,198.60 940.60
Total 1,198.60 '940.60
10 |Loan taken Max Estates Limited 1,571.56 1,867.80
Total 1,571.56 1,867.80
[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

24.02 (b) Balances outstanding at Period/year end
. . As at As at
S.No |Nature of transaction Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
1 Amount receivable Antara Senior Living Limted - 0.57
Siva Realty venture (P) Ltd. - 0.07
Antara Care Homes Limited 0.62 0.14
Max Asset Services Ltd. - 9.63
Max Estates Ltd. - 4.86
Max One Distribution and Services Ltd 0.03 -
Max Skill First Limited 0.04 -
Max Learning Ventures - 0.28
Total 0.69 15.55
2 Amount payable Max Skill First Limited - 0.25
Max Estates Limited 154,31 17.08
Max Ateev Lid 0.03 -
Kiran sharma 0.41 -
Sanjay Khandelwal 0.41 -
Max Asset Services Limited - 6.69
Total 155.16 24.02.
3 Loan Taken Max Estates Limited 4,455.18 4,086.42
Total 4,455.18 4,086.42
4 Performance Security Received Max Asset Services Limited 70.27 43.34
Max Skill First Limited 0.18 -
Vana Retreats Pvt. Ltd. 1.91 1.91
Topline Electronics Pvt Ltd 3.00 -
Total 72.36 45.25
5 Guarantee Taken Max Estates Limited 15.45 4,050.00
Max Ventures and Industries Limited - 4,050.00
Total 15.45 8,100.00
6 Guarantee Given Max Estates Limited 20.24 3,607.83
Total 20.24 3,607.83
Notes

) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions

b) Amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash or receipts of goods and services.

¢) No expense has been recognised for the period/year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 for bad or doubtful receivables in respect of amounts owed by
related parties. .

©

The remuneration of director and other member of Key Managerial Personnel during the year was as follows:-

S No.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31,

2023

v W N =2

Short-term benefits

Share based payments
Termination benefits

Post employment benefits
Other long-term benefits

0.90

Total

0.90
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Pharmax Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

25 Employeé Benefits

The disclosures of Employee Benefits as defined in Indian Accounting Standard 19 are given below:

Defined Benefit Plan

i) Gratuity: The employees' gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company provides gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity

Act, 1972 Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. the amount of gratuity payable on reti

‘mination is the

employees' last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number of years of service.The present value of the

obligation is determined on the basis of year end actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method,which recognizes each period of service as giving rise

to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
ii) Leave Encashment: The company also has a leave encashment scheme with defined benefits for its employees. The company makes provision for such liability
in the books of accounts on the basis of year end actuarial valuation. No fund has been created for this scheme.

1 Reconciliation of opening and closing bal of Defined Benefit Obligation (Rs. In lacs)
Particulars Gratuity Leave Ji t
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
- Present Value of Obligation at beginning of the year 14.12 - 14.48 R
- Interest cost 1.04 - 1.07 -
- Current Service Cost 4.02 343 5.60 4.63
- Prior Service Cost - 10.69 - 9.84
- Benefits Paid (0.75) - (1.30) -
- Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligations 224 - 2.25 -
- Present Value of Obligation at end of the year 20.67 14.12 22,09 14.48
II Reconciliation of opening and closing bal: of fair value of plan assets (Rs. In lacs)
Gratuity Leave i i
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
- Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year - - - -
- Expected return/ (Loss) on plan assets - - - -
- Contributions - - - -
- Benefits Paid - - - -
- Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan assets - - - -
- Fair value of plan assets at end of the year - - . -
I Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations (Rs. In lacs)
Gratuity Leave h
AsatMarch 31, AsatMarch31l, AsatMarch3l, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
- Fair value of plan assets at end of the year - - - -
- Present Value of Obligation at end of the year 20.67 14.12 22,09 14.48
- (Net Asset)/ Liability recognized in Balance Sheet 20.67 14.12 22.09 14.48
- Current Liability 0.37 0.26 0.62 0.32
- Non-Current Liability 20.30 13.86 2147 14.16
IV Expenses recognized in the Stat t of Profit & Loss (Rs. In lacs)
Gratuity Leave hment
As atMarch 31, AsatMarch31, AsatMarch3l, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023
- Current Service Cost 4.02 343 5.60 4.63
- PastService Cost 0.00 10.69 - 9.84
- Interest Cost 1.04 - 1.07 -
- Expected return/ (Loss) on plan assets - - 225 -
- Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 5.06 14.12 8.92 14.47
V Other comprehensive income (OCI) (Rs. In lacs)
Gratuity Leave hment
AsatMarch31, AsatMarch31, AsatMarch3l, ‘As at March 31,
) 2024 2023 2024 2023
- Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligations - - 225 -
- Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Plan assets - - - -
- Net (Income) / Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - - 2.25 -
VI Actuarial Assumptions
Gratuity Leave h t
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
a. Financial assumption
- Discount Rate (per annum) 7.09% 7.36% 7.09% 7.36%
- Salary Escalation (per annum) 10% 10% '10% 10%
b. Demographic assumptions
- Retirement age - 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years
- Mortality Rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100% 100% 100%
- Attrition/Withdrawal rates, based on age: (per annum)
upto 30 years 5% 5% 5% 5%
31.44 years 3% 3% 3% 3%
above 44 years 2% 2% 2% 2%
- Leave
Leave Availment Rate 7 SAALE T, - - 50% 50%
Leave Lapse rate while in service Ny ) - - Nil Nil
Leave Lapse rate on exit - - 50% 50%
- - Nil Nil

Leave encashment Rate while in service




VII Sensivity analysis

(Rs. In lacs)

Gratuity Leave h

_2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23
Increase / (decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligations at the end of the year
Discount rate
Increase by 0.50% (1.03) 0.75) (1.07) (0.84)
Decrease by 0.50% : 113 0.82 1.20 0.96
Sal; &
Increase by 0.50% 1.09 7.95 1.15 0.86
Decrease by 0.50% (1.01) (0.73) (1.05) 0.79)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated. Sensitivities as rate of increase of pensions in

11

payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life exp y are not appli

VIII Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain aésumptiqns, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various risks as follow -

a) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. I in salary i rate
liability.

ption in future valuations will also increase the

b) Investment Risk — If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last

valuation date can impact the liability.
c) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

d) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

€} Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact

Plan’s liability.
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Pharmax Corporation Limited .
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

26

27

Segment reporting

The Company is a one segment

inthet

of real estate d

segment, there are no additional disclosures to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 on ‘Segment Reporting’.

Financial instruments

The comparison of carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories that are not measured at fair value are as follows:

P and leasing. All its operations are located in India , accordingly, the Company views thess activities as one business

(Rs. in Lacs}
Category Carrying value Fair Value
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1) Financial asset at amortized cost
Loans - - - -
Other financial assets 295.43 134.44 265.43 134.44
‘Trade receivables 7.17 23.70 717 23.70
Cash and cash equivalents 145.02 301.21 145.02 301.21
2) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Non current & current
Borrowings 11,261.68 12,133.13 11,261.68 12,138.13
Other financial liabilities 2,692.23 1,107.07 2,692.23 1,107.07
Trade payables 16.48 9.26 1648 9.26
1 The Company assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equi , other bank bal loans and ad to related parties, interest receivable, trade payables, capital creditors are considered to be

the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.

could be exch d in & current

2 The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the i between willing parties, other than in a forced or
ds and f

liquidation sale. The following meth were used to estimate the fair values:

3 Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rat 25 are d by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the
and the risk ct of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

4 The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks and other financial liabilities as well as other noncurrent financial liabilities are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently
available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The valuation requires management to use observable and unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant observable
and unobservable inputs are disclosed in the table below, Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible altemnatives for those significant observable and unobservable inputs and
determines their impact on the total fair value. :

5 The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing t ings and other t financial liabilities are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as
at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as March 31, 2024 was assessed to be insignificant.

2701 Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for d ining and disclosing the fair value of financial i by valuati hini

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data

(i) Quantitative discl of fair value hi hy for financial assets as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31,2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans L2 - - -
Other financial assets 295.43 295.43 -
Trade receivables 717 717 -
(ii) Quantitative discl of fair value hi hy for financial assets as on March 31, 2023
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Loans - * - R .
Other financial assets 13444 - 134.44 -
Trade receivables 23.70 - 23.70 .
(iii) Quantitati discl of fair value hierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31, 2024 |
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non current & current .
Borrowings : 11,261.68 - 11,261.68 -
Other financial liabilities 2,692.23 - 2,692.23 -
Trade payables 16.43 - 16.48 -
(iv) Quantitative discl of fair value hierarchy for financial liabilities as on March 31, 2023
Particulars Carrying value Fair value
March 31,2023
Level 1l Level2 Level 3
Borrowings 12,138.13 12,138.13 -
Other financial lisbilities 1,107.07 - 1,107.07 -
Trade payables 9.26 - 926 -
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Fi ial risk t objectives and polici

The Company’s has instituted an overall risk management programme which also fi on the unpredictability of fi ial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Company's financial performance. The Corporate Finance department, evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the various stakeholders.

The Company is exposed to capital risk, market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. These risks are managed pro-actively by the Senior Management of the Company, duly supported
by various Groups and Comumittees.

2) Capital risk

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to its shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to provide for sufficient capital expansion. The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 10, cash and
cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and equity as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its fi ial obligations as they b due. The Company employees prudent liquidity risk management
practices which inter alia means maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adeq of committed credit facilities.
Given the nature of the underlying businesses, the corporate finance maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines and this way liquidity
tisk is mitigated by the availability of funds to cover future commitments. Cash flow forecasts are prepared not only for the entities but the Group as a whole and the utilized
borrowing facilities are monitored on a daily basis and there is adequate focus on good management practices whereby the collections are ged efficiently. The Company while
borrowing funds for large capital project, negotiates the repay hedule in such a that these match with the generation of cash on such investment. Longer term cash
flow forecasts are updated from time to time and reviewed by the Investment and Performance Review Committee of the Board.
The table below represents the maturity profile of Company's financial liabilities at the end of March 31, 2023 based on cq 1 undi dp -
As at March 31, 2023 01 Years | 1.5 Years More than § Total

Years
Borrowings - 3,900.87 7,917.07 320.19 12,138.13
Trade payable 9.26 - - 9.26
Other fi ial liabilities 734.10 - 348.60 1,082.70
% to Total 35.10% 59.84% 5.06% 100.00%
As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings 4,455.18 6,462.24 344.26 11,261.68
Trade payable ) 16.48 - - 16.48
Other fi ial liabilities 1,788.87 - 887.23 2,676.10
% to Total 44.86% 46.31% 8.83% 100.00%
) Credit risk
Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its fi ing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. .
(i) Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is ged by each busi unit subject to the Company's blished policy, p: d and control relating to customer credit risk management.

Management credit risk g to s on an ongoing basis. Receivable control management Department assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into
t its financial position, past experience and other factors. The Company provides credit to individuals on exceptional basis only. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date on an individual basis.

(ii) Financial instruments and cash deposit

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. I of surplus
fands are made in bank deposits and other risk free securities. The limits are set to minimize the ion of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counter party's
potential failure to make payments. Credit limits of all authorities are reviewed by the management on regular basis. All balances with banks and financial institutions is subject to
low credit risk due to good credit ratings assigned to the Company.

The Company's maximum exp to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2024 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in the liquidity table above.

¢) Market risk
Market risk is the risk.that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl b of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three types of

risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks inchide loans and
borrowings, deposits, investments and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024. The
analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on; the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and
liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held as of March 31, 2024.
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Capftal Management )

For the purpose of the Company’s capital t, capital includes issued equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company, share premium and all other equity
reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capital t is that it maintain an efficient capital structure and maximize the shareholder value. The Company manages its
capital structure and makes adj in light of changes in i ditions and the requirements of the financial . To maintain or adjust the capital structure, The

Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding

discontinued operations.

{Rs. in Lacs)
Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings . 11,261.68 12,138.13
Other financial liabilities 2,692.23 1,107.07
Trade payables 16.48 . 926
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (145.02) . (301.21)
Net Debt 13,825.37 12,953.25
Equity Share Capital 473.89 473.89
Other Equity 1,255.67 1,138.51
Total Equity 1,729.56 1,612.40
Total Capital and net debt 15,554.93 14,565.65
Gearing ratio 88.88% 88.93%
Analysis
Current Asset 1,455.06 2,077.03
Cuurent Liability ©,208.06 4,676.85
Current Ratio 0.23 0.44
Variance -47%
Reason: Increase in Current Liabilities due to increase in capital
creditors
Debt 11,261.68 12,138.13
Shareholder Equity 1,729.56 1,612.40
Debt-Equity Ratio 6.51 7.53
Variance -14%
Earnings available for debt servies 936.46 658.10
Interest 364.90 365.66
Principal 11,261.68 12,138.13
Debt Services Coverage Ratio 0.03 0.05
Variance 53%
Reason: Increase in EBIT due to increase in Revenue from operations
Net Income (annual) . 123,93 297.62
Shareholder Equity 1,729.56 1,612.40
Return on Equity Ratio . 0.07 0.18
Variance -61% '
Reason: Decrease in Net profit due to increase in deferred Tax expense
Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation 1,041.21 710.52
Working Capital (4,753.00) (2,599.82)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (0.22) (0.27)
20%
Net Profit 123.93 297.62
Net annual sale/Revenue from Operation 1,041.21 710.52
Net Profit Ratio 0.12 0.42
Variance =72%
Reason: Decrease in Net profit due to increase in deferred Tax expense
Eaming before interest and tax (EBIT) 747.09 584.57
Capital Employed . 8,536.06 5,948.79
Return on Capital employéd 8.75% 9.83%
Variance -10.93%
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio
Net Credit Sales 1,041.21 710.52
Average Receivables 15.44 17.73
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio 67.46 40.08
Variance 68.30%
Reason: Due to increase in Revenue from operations
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio NA NA
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30 DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ETERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT

(MSMED) ACT, 2006
The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by the Company from the available information, which has been relied upon by the auditors. According to such
identification, the discl as per Section 22 of 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development (MSMED) Act, 2006' are as follows:
(Rs. In lacs)
Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
- Principal amount - 024
- Interest thereon Nil Nil
ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, along with the amounts of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. Nil Nil
iif) The amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under this act. Nil Nil
iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. Nil Nil
v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor. Nit Nil

The above information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status of suppliers
under the MSMED.

31 Note on Facilities Manag t Services Agr

The company has appointed Max Asset Services Limited as Facilities Manager to manage and run the facilities of Max House Okhla Block-A via the Facilities Management Services
Agreement entered by the company and Max Estates Limited (jointly as the developer of Max House Okhla, Block-A) for a term of 3 years ending on July 28, 2023.

For the services provided by Max Asset Services Limited, the company will charge 10% of the Max Asset Services Ltd. profit from the Facilities management of Max House Okhla,
Block-A.

The company will also get the 100% IFRMSD collected by Max Asset Services Limited as a performance guarantee towards the performance of its obligations as a service provider by
Max Asset Services Limited

During the year, since Max Asset Services Limited does not have any profits regarding the said project, no charge has been provided to the company as income.
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There have been no delays in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.
The Company has no outstanding derivative or foreign currency exposure as at the end of the current year and previous year.

Events after the Reporting period

Subsequent to year end, Max Estates Limited("The Holding Company") has entered into a binding M dum of Und ding (MoU) dated April 30, 2024 with New York Life
Insurance Company ("NYL") for investment in the Company. NYL will (i) subscribe to 74,48,814 equity shares to be issued by the Company for an aggregate consideration of
approximately INR. 347.56 million; and (ii) acquire 3,40,64,700 equity shares of the Company, from the holding Company for an aggregate consideration of approximately INR
1,589.46 million

’Ihe.Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code”) relating to employee benefits during employ and post-employ benefits has received Presidential assent on 28 September 2020.
The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective date of the Code is yet to be notified and final rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be
issued. In view of this, the Company will assess the impact of the Code when relevant provisions are notified and will record related impact, if any, in the period the Code becomes
effective.

The company does not have any transaction with the companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or.section 560 of the Companies Act 1956 during the year
ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

There are no changes or satisfaction which are to be registered with the registrar of companies during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31st 2023.

The company is in compliance with number of layers of companies in accordance with clause 87 of Section 2 of the Act read with the companies (Restriction on number of layers)
rules 2017 during the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2023

The company has not invested or traded in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2023.
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No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of B i Property Tt ion Act 1988 (as amended in
2016) (formally the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder during the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2023.

The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authorities during the year ended March 31 2024 and March
312023.

The company has not entered into any sct of ar pproved by the p authority in terms of section 232 to 237 of the Companies Act 2013 during the year ended
March 31 2024 and March 31 2023.

During the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2023, the p has not surrendered or disclosed as income any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts in the
course of tax under the I Tax Act, 1961 (such as search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act 1961). .

During the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2023, the company has not advanced or loan or invested funds (either borrowed funds or the share premium or kind of funds) to
any other person or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the und g (wheth ded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

During the year ended March 31 2024 and March 31 2023, the company has not received any fund from any persons or entities including foreign entities (Funding party) with the
d ded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ulti beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneﬁciarie§.

Note No. 1 to 46 form integral part of the Balance sheet and Statement of profit & Loss.
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